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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Situated in the midst of gently rolling lawns, Ellerslie is a physically 
commanding, two-story house of basic Georgian styling. Of frame con­
struction, the house is five bays wide on both side elevations and has 
two exterior chimneys at each end. At the west end of the house is a 
one-story, two-bay frame wing. The house and wing are sheathed with 
lapped clapboards, and all of the windows have louvered exterior blinds. 
The roof of both parts of the house is of painted tin, on the main block 
replacing the original wood shingles. 

The principal facade of the main block faces north. The entrance door, 
which has a double, eight-pane transom, occupies the center bay and is 
flanked on each side by two windows of nine-over-nine sash. The five 
second floor windows, each aligned with the opening below, all frame sash 
of six-over-nine panes. The two first and second floor windows closest 
to the west end are positioned closer together than those at the opposite 
end of this elevation and define the area of an earlier structure that 
was extensively remodeled and extended to create the present house. 

·At the main entrance door is a Federal-style, one-story pedimented porch ) 
with balustrades, slender tapered posts, and a vaulted ceiling that 
extends through the tympanum of the pediment. Built by the present owners 
circa 1965, the porch is of a design appropriate to the date and archi­
tecture of the house. The rear elevation repeats the fenestration and 
door location of the front; however, there is no transom over the door 
and a shed-roofed porch with turned posts and balustrade is centered 
across the middle three bays of the first floor. 

At the east end of the house are two windows of six-over-six pane sash 
in the gable and a single first floor door located between the chimneys. 
The door is fronted by a brick stoop and steps with a wood balustrade 
matching that of the front and rear porches. 

At the west end of the house is one six-over-six gable window and a 
single second floor window between the chimneys. At this end the south­
west chimney is larger than the others to acconunodate an additional 
flue servicing a kitchen fireplace in the west wing. The other three 
chimneys each service two fireplaces. All four chimneys are of brick 
construction and have stepped weatherings. 

On both side elevations the eave cornices have ogee crown and bed 
moldings with the end boards shaped in the same profile. The house sits 
on high brick foundation walls with five grilled window vents on the 
front. A door near the west end of the south elevation provides access ~ 
to a partial cellar beneath the main house. ) 

The west wing, built circa 1968 on the foundations of an earlie~ structure 
of similar styling, has two windows of nine-over-nine sash in the north 
wall, one nine-over-nine window in the west end wall, and on the north side, 

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 11. 
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a window and door, the former with nine-over-nine sash and the latter 
a batten design hung on wrought strap hinges. 

There is sufficient architectural evidence to indicate that Ellerslie 
began as a smaller structure, possibly built as early as the mid­
eighteenth century, and was extensively altered and enlarged circa 
1790-1820. The house as it exists today represents its plan and appear­
ance following the completion of the alterations, although a few feature 
of the original building can still be seen. 

The north entrance door opens into a central hall that extends the full 
depth of the house. At the south end of the hall is an offset stair of 
rather unusual configuration. Approached from the middle of the hall, 
it begins for the first flight and landing in an area set back from the 
main side wall of the hall. The stair rises in three flights to the 
second floor and is completely enclosed. On the first floor to the 
left of the hall (facing south) is a spacious double parlor partitioned 
by a large doorway fitted with two folding, triple-leafed doors. To 
the right of the hall are two rooms, believed to be part of the original 
house. Although all of the first floor rooms are handsomely propor­
tioned and detailed, the double parlors are particularly noteworthy. 
The two mantels have pilasters with fluted half-columns supporting a 
frieze with center and end panels decorated with bead-and-reel moldings. 
On the center block of each is a raised, molded urn with raised, molded 
swags decorating the frieze between the center and end blocks. Both 
mantels have a molded cornice shelf with beading (pearls) on the face 
trim. The remaining woodwork includes molded, one-piece window and 
door surrounds, beaded baseboards, and a molded, one-piece chairrail. 
When the house was restored in the late 1950s and early 1960s, pieces 
of elaborate plaster ceiling cornices were found in the walls and under 
the house. The existing cornices, installed during the restoration, 
are not as elaborate as their predecessors but are of an appropriate 
design and scale. The same ceiling cornice extends into the hall and 
two west rooms. In the hall the woodwork consists of wide door sur­
rounds with two applied moldings, one positioned at the outer edge of 
the faceboard and the other closer in toward the door opening. Beaded 
baseboards and two-piece chairrails are essentially the same in the hall 
as in the two west rooms. The window and door surrounds in the west 
rooms are of two pieces and like the chairrails, are of a typical late 
18th-early 19th century profile. The mantels in these rooms are fairly 
simple, with molded pilasters supporting a blocked frieze and molded 
cornice shelf. The only modern introductions to the first floor are 
kitchen facilities in the southwest room and a half-bath in a closet 
under the stair. 

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 12. 



Form No. 10-300• 
!Rev 10-741 

UNITl:.D STATl:.S DEPARTMENT 01- THE INTLRIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF IHSTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM 

Ellers lie 
Charles County, 

CONTINUATION SHEET Maryland ITEM NUMBER 7 

DESCRIPTION (continued) 

FOR NPS use ONLY 

RECEIVED 

DATE ENTERED 

PAGE 2 

On the second floor, which has a center hall and four bedrooms, the wood­
work is basically the same as that of the two first floor west rooms. 
A small room at the south end of the hall has been converted into a 
bathroom. A door at the south end opens onto a stair leading to a 
commodious but unfinished attic. 

The one-room west wing is accessible from the first floor southwest 
room, and its floor level is several feet lower than that of the main 
block. At the east end is a large cooking fireplace remaining from 
the earlier wing that occupied this same location. 

Immediately south of the house are several buildings of architectural 
significance, three of them moved here from other locations in the ) 
county. The most important of the dependencies is a small barn, for­
merly a combination granary and mill, known as the "Old Friendship 
Barn," believed to have been built on its original location in the late 
17th century. It is the oldest known and recorded building of its 
type in the state. The other outbuildings include a smokehouse (now 
a tool shed) with a pedimented roof that extends out from the face of 
the front wall, anda pyramid-roofed dairy. Both are believed to date 
from the 18th century. 

To the westof the north entrance drive is the site of what appears 
to have been a frame house with exterior chimneys. Believed to date 
from the 18th century and possibly the predecessor of the existing 
house, little surface (exposed) evidence remains to indicate its 
original appearance other than that it was a fairly substantial structure. 
Between this site and the main house are several graves marked by 
fieldstones. These are traditionally said to be Indian grayes, but it 
is just as likely that they are the graves of the slaves who lived 
on and worked the property. 

Ellerslie is a rectangular-shaped tract of land with the house and 
dependencies located toward the south end of the property. The house 
sits in the center of spacious lawns that gently fall toward the north, 
south, and west sides. The north, south, and west borders of the 
property are densely wooded~effectively shielding the house from the .. ) 
main road to the north and a subdivision flanking it on the south and 
west sides. A cleared area east of the house allows it to be clearly 
seen from the Port Tobacco Heights subdivision; however, cedars and 
other trees have been planted in this area that will eventually 
shield the house from view. The grounds proximate to the house are 

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET i3. 
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landscaped with a variety of flowering trees and shrubs. To the west 
and north sides are large shade trees, several of which are over 200 
years old. Two magnificent lombardy pines in front of the house 
rise to an extraordinary height, towering over the tall house. 
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Attractively maintained, architecturally distinctive, and historically 
significant, Ellerslie is one of Charles County's most important 
historic landmarks. Built in the late Georgian style with Federal 
interior decorations, it is one of the best preserved examples.of late 
18th century architecture in lower Southern Maryland. Its long associa­
tion with two of Southern Maryland's most political and socially pran-
inent families serves to further establish its regional landmark status. 

The existing fifty-two acres known as Ellerslie were originally part of 
a tract of land called Coates Retirement. The tract was surveyed several 
times and patented to Bartholomew Coates during the period 1661 to lr -. 
Coates died in about 1673, and in 1674 the patent was finally awardea _j 
his widow, Mary Coates. Following her death the property passed into 
the ownership of her heirs, William and Thomas Coates. 

By 1720 the property had been declared in escheat and a new warrant for 
resurvey, followed by a patent for 500 acres, was awarded to Dr. Daniel 
Jenifer, a prosperous and influential gentleman who amassed extensive 
landholdings throughout Charles County. For over 100 years Coates 
Retirement remained in the possession of the heirs and descendants of 
Dr. Jenifer, including his son, Daniel of St. Thomas Jenifer, a nationally 
prominent political figure who served as a member of the Continental 
Congress from 1778 to 1782 and signed the Constitution of the United State 
for Maryland in 1787. Coates Retirement passed from the hands of the 
Jenifer family in 1835 when it was sold to Henry Brawner. It was during 
Brawner's ownership that the property w~s renamed Ellerslie. In 1854 
the property was acquired by Walter H. J. Mitchell from the estate of 
Henry Brawner's widow. Mitchell, a Jenifer descendant who lived at 
Linden (NR) near Port Tobacco, was a locally prominent political figure 
who made an unsuccessful bid for Governor of Maryland in the late 1850s. 
A graduate of Yale College, he was actively involved in legal and poli­
tical affairs and maintained close affiliations with many nationally 
important political figures until his death in 1869. Ellerslie, con­
t.aining about 700 acres, remained in the Mitchell family until 1957 when 
it was sold to Howard N. Bowie. During Bowie's ownership the property 
was broken into smaller parcels that were sold off individually. ThF ~ 
present owners purchased the house and remaining fifty-two acres fron. ) 
Bowie in 1958. 

The outbuildings at Ellerslie include several that we;e ~oyed here and 

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 14. 



( 

( 

Form No 10-3001 
!Rev 10-74) 

UN IH.D ST A TES DE PAR l ML.NT Of THE IN Tl:R IOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

NATIONAL REGISTER OF IDSTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY·· NOMINATION FORM 

Ellerslie 
Charles County 

FOR NftS USE ONLY 

RECEIVED 

DATE ENTERED 

CONTINUATION SHEET Maryland ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 4 

SIGNIFICANCE (continued) 

restored in recent years. .All of them are noteworthy examples 
of early farm dependencies of which fewer and fewer representative 
examples remain. Of particular significance is a 17th century barn, 
believed to be the oldest structure of its type in Maryland. 

The existing property encompasses several building sites, the most 
easily discernible being that of a frame house located several hundred 
yards northwest of the present house. It is believed by some that this 
house preceded the existing one and may have been the home of Dr. Daniel 
Jenifer. If so, it was possibly the boyhood home of Daniel of St. Thomas 
Jenifer. If such could be documented it would establish this as one of 
Maryland's more important historical archeological sites. It is also 
possible, however, that the oldest part of the existing house was built 
by either Dr. Jenifer or one of his sons including, conceivably, Daniel 
of St. Thomas. Since Daniel of St. Thomas Jenifer spent most of his 
later life at his plantation, Stepney, in Annapolis and had disposed of 
most of his landholdings in Charles County before his death in 1790, 
it is unlikely that he had anything to do with the renovations which 
occurred here. Nevertheless, the association of the Jenifer family with 
the property and the architectural interest and integrity of the house 
and dependencies easily establish its significance on both a local 
and regional level. 
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATA (continued) 

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION. 

The 52 acres nominated is a rectangular shaped tract of land 
bounded on the north by Maryland Route 6, on the east by Howard Drive 
and the Port Tobacco Heights subdivision, and on the south and west 
sides by Port Tobacco Hills subdivision. 
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CHAS-24 
ELLERSLIE (Coate's Retirement) 
Port Tobacco 
Private 

circa 1790 

Ellerslie, a two-story frame house with a formal five bay 
facade and two exterior chimneys at each end, is one of the most 
formal and attractive of the remaining large houses in the county 
dating from the Federal period. Of particular note is its enclosed 
off-set stair in the center hall and attractive woodwork, the latter 
including sophisticated Adam-style mantels in the double parlors. 
Fragments of elaborate plaster cornices and trim found when the 
house was being restored indicate that it once possessed a very 
elegant interior. A kitchen wing at one end is built on the 
foundations of an earlier structure destroyed many years ago. 
Among Ellerslie's many interesting dependencies, several of which 
were moved here from other locations in the county and restored, 
is the seventeenth century Old Friendship (Gwither) Barn (CHAS-202). 

Ellerslie stands on land patented by Bartholomew Coates before 
1672 and named Coates Retirement. From 1720 to 1835 it was owned 
by the wealthy and politically prominent Jenifer family, including 
Daniel of St. Thomas Jenifer, Signer of the U. S. Constitution. 
In 1854 the property was acquired by Walter H. J. Mitchell, a 
prominent political figure and land speculator who lived at nearby 
Linden (CHAS-48). Ellerslie remained in the Mitchell family until 
1957. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Ellerslie, restored by its present owners in the late 1950s and 
1960s, is a handsome frame house combining Georgian and Federal 
details. 

The principal facade faces north and has a transomed entrance door 
flanked by two windows of 9-over-9 sash to each side. At the second 
floor level above are five windows of 6-over-9 sash. The front en­
trance is sheltered by a one-story pedimented porch of Federal design 
with tapered posts, balustrade and arched ceiling. The porch was 
built in the mid-1960s. The rear elevation repeats the door location 
and fenestration of the front except that the door is positioned to 
the right of center. Covering the three middle first floor bays is 
a one-story shed roofed porch with tapered posts and balustrade. At 
both ends of the house stand two exterior brick chimneys with stepped 
shoulders and free-standing stacks. At the west end there is a single 
gable window and one second floor window between the chimneys. At 
the opposite end there are two gable windows and a first floor door, 
the latter fronted by a brick stoop and steps. The house is built 
on high brick foundation walls and has exterior sheathing of rando1 
width lapped boards and a tin roof. Extending out from the west ena 
of the house is a one-story wing that was built in the late 1960s 
on the foundations of an earlier kitchen. 

The main, north entrance door opens into a center hall with an enclosed 
off-set stair at its south end. To the .left of the hall are double 
parlors connected by two triple leafed folding doors. To the right 
of the hall are two smaller rooms, the northwest rooms used as a dining 
room and the adjoining room, smaller than its companion due to the 
positioning of the stair, converted for use as a kitchen. Both west 
end rooms have woodwork of a basic late-eighteenth century profile; 
the woodwork of the hall and double parlors is, however, somewhat more 
formal. Of particular note are the parlor mantels decorated by fluted 
half-columns and a shelf and frieze decorated with bead and reed mold­
ings and Adamesque urns and swags. On the second floor is a center 
hall, four bedrooms, and a small room at the front of the hall. An 
enclosed stair at the south end of the hall leads to a commodious but 
unfinished attic. 

When Ellerslie was restored fragments of elaborate plaster cornices 
and trim were found, indicating that the house at one time possessed 
a remarkably rich and sophisticated interior. 

There are several dependencies of note, three of which have been moved 
here from other locations in the county and carefully restored. T7 
most important of these is the seventeenth century Old Friendship 
(Gwither}Barn (CHAS-202}. Also located on the property is the sir 

(continued on attached sheet} 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Ellerslie, a two-story frame house with a formal five bay facade 
and two exterior chimneys at each end, is one of the most formal 
and attractive of the remaining large houses in the county dating 
from the Federal period. Of particular note is its enclosed off­
set stair in the center hall and attractive woodwork, the latter 
including sophisticated Adam-style mantels in the double parlors. 
Fragments of elaborate plaster cornices and trim found when the 
house was being restored indicate that it once possessed a very 
elegant interior. A kitchen wing at one end is built on the 
foundations of an earlier structure destroyed many years ago. 
Among Ellerslie's many interesting dependencies, several of which 
were moved here from other locations in the county and restored, 
is the seventeenth century Old Friendship (Gwither) Barn (CHAS-202). 

Ellerslie stands on land patented by Bartholomew Coates before 
1672 and named Coates Retirement. From 1720 to 1835 it was owned 
by the wealthy and politically prominent Jenifer family, including 
Daniel of St. Thomas Jenifer, Signer of the U. S. Constitution. 
In 1854 the property was acquired by Walter H. J. Mitchell, a 
prominent political figure and land speculator who lived at nearby 
Linden (CHAS-48). Ellerslie remained in the Mitchell family until 
1957. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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ll!JGEOGRAPHICAL DATA 
ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY--------

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

Ellerslie is located on a 47.95 acre tract of land 
identified as parcel 63, Map 43 of the Charles County 
Tax Maps (revised Jan. 1976). 

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STATE COUNTY 

STATE COUNTY 

mFORM PREPARED BY 
NAME I TITLE 

J. Richard Rivoire, Consultant 
ORGANIZATION DATE 

Charles County Planning Commission November 1977 
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE 

Charles County Courthouse 645-6537 
CITY OR TOWN STATE 

La Plata Maryland 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created 
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the 
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 
1974 Supplement. 

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information 
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe­
ment of individual property rights. 

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust 
The Shaw House, 21 State Circle 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
( 301) 267-1438 
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of Coate's Retirement, believed to have been built by Dr. Daniel 
Jenifer, father of Daniel of St. Thomas Jenifer, Signer of the 
U. s. Constitution. 
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~S· (Type all entries - complete applicable sections) I 
11. NAME 

COMMON: 

ELLERS LIE 
ANDf OR HISTORIC: 
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=> Agriculturol 0 Government 0 Park 0 Transportation 0 Comments 0 
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Entertainment ri Museum 0 Scientific 0 

z ''· OWNER OF PROPERTY 
OWNERS NAME: W t..JOn Perrygo 
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CH-~y 
J7. l)f!SCRIPTION 

(Chttelt One) 
CONDITION 

Excellent Gil Good 0 Foir 0 Oeterioroted O Ruins O Unexposed O 

I 
(Choelc Ontt) (Cheelc One) 

INTEGRITY 
Altered 0 Unaltered (29 Moved 0 Original Sito [d 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL (If lcnown) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE: 

ELLERSLIE is a rather imposing Georgi n residence two 
storeys in height with _n "". 11 frame roof and posses es two chimneys 
at each gable end (e~erior} 

The facade ( N. elevation) is five bays in length: center 
door flanked by two 9t9 windows to each side. The large door pos­
esses an over ligh~ ~nd single flanking side light . The pedimented 
porch at the main door h s a cen~er vaulted ceiling and the one 
storey two bay kitchen wing 1:10 the W end is e. reconstruction using 
the origin l foundation dimensionQ (?). 

The m-in block appeurs to hbve been built in two parts 
judging from interior details ~nd l~t. floor joist placements That 
portion ~o the W of the center hall including the present 'id.tcnErn 
-nd dining room circa 174o ~nd that portion E of the hall 1790-!Xf P 
(double p::rloD). 

The hall is divided by fluted keystoned arch with a boxed 
in stair at the extreme $. end. Most. of the originsl mouldings 
are intactJhowever,the mouldings of the dining room (including 
cornice) and some h....rdware e.re replacements-though of the period 
in design. The floor o~ the upstairs SE bedroom is also a replace­
ment. 

The clapboarding of the exterior iG a mixture of the 
restored original and replacements 1~L~e s. elevation (rear) of 
the main block has c. three quarter11.'e:.~ porch . ... .All .chimneys ;;. re 
of great height, exterior, e.nd possess free standing stacks. The 
stack of the SW chimney is slightly larger th.in the other three 
a~ it contuins a third flue (kitchen fireplace). 

Besidei:> a few interesting out buildingo-nll of which 
have been restored-there i s presently being reconstructed and 
restored a oeventeenth century barn which was moved here from its 
original site, "Old Friendship M~ nor ~1 on Nanj emoy Creek. 
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Urbao Planning 
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0 

ELLERSLIE was originHlly owned by the Jenifer family 
and it is highly possible that DJniel of St . Thow:.s Jenifer 
was born and lived here rather than at the nearby~Retreat: 

Ellerslie w~o one of several dwellings that stood 
within a 0>mall sixty to 100 ;icre area. One d,,.elling was 
a two ~torey log structure that is said to n .. ve been the 
home of Dsn . of St. Thos. Jeni£er's Father but which has 
long since been destroyed. The present owner has Gever~l 
infra"red aerial photogrgphs which show many foundations. 
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12. STATE LIAISON OFFICl!R CERTIFICAllON NATIONAL REGISTER VERIF ICATION 

As the dl•s1~nated State L1a1son OUicer (or the Na-

t1onaJ Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Publlc Law 
I herebv certify that this property L!I included in the 

89-665), I hereby nominate thjs property for 1nclus1on Nationa I Register. 

1n the Notional Reg1!lter and certify that il has been 

evaluated accordU\g to the criteria and procea.ires set 

forth by thl• National Perk Service . The recommended 
Chief, OUice of ArcheoloQy and Historic Preservation 

level of !li1tnificance of this nonunat1on is: 
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